
 
 
 
 
 

MCILS 
 

November 29, 2021 
Commissioner’s Meeting  

Packet 
 
 

1



 

MAINE COMMISSION ON INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES 

 
NOVEMBER 29, 2021 

COMMISSION MEETING 

AGENDA 

 

 

1) Public Hearing on Chapter 301 Rulemaking  

2) Approval of October 29, 2021 Commission Meeting Minutes 

3) Report of the Executive Director 

4) Forum Update 

5) Collections Concerns 

6) Set Date, Time and Location of Next Regular Meeting of the Commission 

7) Public Comment 

8) Executive Session 

 

 

2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



1 
 

Maine Commission on Indigent Legal Services – Commissioners Meeting 
October 29, 2021 

 
Minutes  

 
Commissioners Present:  Donald Alexander, Meegan Burbank, Michael Carey, Robert Cummins, Roger Katz, Matthew Morgan, 
Ronald Schneider, Joshua Tardy 
MCILS Staff Present: Justin Andrus, Ellie Maciag 
 
Agenda Item Discussion Outcome/Action 

Item/Responsible 
Party 

Public Hearing on 
Chapter 301 
Rulemaking 
 

No public comment.  

Approval of the 
September 22, 2021 
Commission meeting 
minutes 
 

 No discussion. Commissioner 
Cummins moved to 
approve. Commissioner 
Katz seconded. All 
voted in favor. 
Approved. 

Child Protective Director Andrus relayed that following the Judicial Branch’s parents’ attorney 
training held earlier this week, several attendees contacted him about troubling 
comments made by a district court judge during one panel session. Attorneys 
reported that this judge told parents attorneys to not pursue contested hearings, 
judicial reviews or termination hearings. Director Andrus has requested the 
recording of this session to review. Director Andrus alerted the Commission 
about issues with DHHS regarding the lack of parent visitation. Commissioner 
Carey requested the documentation of the DHHS contract with the visitation 
provider and extended an invitation to MEPRA, the newly created parents 
attorney organization, for its members to speak at a future Commission meeting 
to brief the Commission on issues the group is seeing. 

 

12



2 
 

Agenda Item Discussion Outcome/Action 
Item/Responsible 
Party 

Commissioner Mary 
Zmigrodski 
 

Chair Tardy announced Commissioner Mary Zmigrodski has stepped down as a 
Commission member. Chair Tardy thanked her for service on the Commission. 

 

Report of the 
Executive Director 
 

Commissioner Katz expressed concern about the low voucher amounts for 
several case categories, including mental health, felony, and misdemeanor 
cases, and that not enough time was being devoted to these cases. Commissioner 
Burbank clarified that for many mental health cases, many are dismissed before 
a hearing which might cause the average voucher amount to be low. Director 
Andrus indicated that the Audit Division will be looking at low voucher values 
as well to identify areas of concern. Director Andrus added that the RFP for a 
new case management system is forthcoming and a new system will help with 
the issue of companion vouchers that artificially reduce the voucher average. 
Director Andrus provided the security agreement that all Commission staff will 
agreeing to as well as the form to be used for Commission assigned counsel.  
Director Andrus reported that there is still no agreement with the Judicial 
Branch about sharing quality of service issues about rostered counsel with the 
Commission. Director Andrus also alerted the Commission on the serious 
problem in several jails where people reporting for sentences are being turned 
away and their sentences being stayed indefinitely.  
 

 

Staffing Update Director Andrus reported that three of the new Commission staff had started 
work with the fourth set to begin in the coming weeks.  
 

 

Forum Update 
 

Director Andrus announced that the Commission’s Attorney Forum has be 
scheduled for November 23 and various stakeholders will be invited to attend, 
including the Court, Judiciary Committee members, GOC, AFA, MACDL, 
MEPRA, District Attorneys and Attorneys Generals.  
 

 

AOC Discussion 
Update 

Director Andrus reported that he is trying hard to engage with the 
Administrative Office of the Courts on the Odyssey-Justice Works integration.   

 

13



3 
 

Agenda Item Discussion Outcome/Action 
Item/Responsible 
Party 

Legislative Update 
 

Director Andrus reported that Representative Harnett’s bill addressing the 
recording of attorney-client telephone calls at the jail has been voted down by 
the Legislative Council. Director Andrus stated that Rep. Harnett intends to 
appeal that decision. 
 

 

Commissioner 
Alexander’s Proposal 
 

Commissioner Alexander gave an overview of his proposal and it was well 
received by the rest of the Commission. Commissioner Schneider suggested to 
workshop the proposal.  
 

 

Barbara Taylor 
Contract Renewal 
Update 
 

Director Andrus reported that Attorney Barbara Taylor’s contract with the 
Commission to provide immigration consultations with attorneys in appointed 
cases has been renewed.  

 

New Attorney 
Training Proposal 
 

Director Andrus suggested postponing the planned expanded new attorney 
training until it can be held safely in person. The Commissioners all agreed.  

 

Chapter 301 
Rulemaking 
Discussion 
 

Commissioner Alexander proposed several changes to the amended Chapter 
301, including changing the presumptive maximums for several criminal and 
juvenile categories and increase the minimum fee for LOD appearances. 
Commission Carey moved to approve Chapter 301 as amended by 
Commissioner Alexander. Commissioner Cummins seconded. A discussion 
ensued about whether the term “attorney” or “counsel” should be used, with 
Commissioner Schneider suggesting the use of the term counsel since it better 
reflects what Rule 44 says and is in the title of Chapter 301. The Commissioners 
agreed to change attorney to counsel throughout the rule. The vote on the 
motion was unanimous.  
 

 

Public Comment 
 

Robert Ruffner, Esq. Attorney Ruffner relayed a recent LOD experience where 
a York County judge refused a provisional appointment of counsel for an in-
custody defendant who could not afford to make bail set at $500. Attorney 

 

14



4 
 

Agenda Item Discussion Outcome/Action 
Item/Responsible 
Party 

Ruffner stated that this highlighted the need for LOD training about how to 
make the appropriate objections. Attorney Ruffner urged the Commission to 
adopt a policy that co-counsel is allowed in every case. Addressing 
Commissioner Alexander’s proposal, Attorney Ruffner suggested that a contract 
based on $80 per hour will not attract a lot of interest and just changing the 
timing of payment does not really help. Attorney Ruffner urged the Commission 
to have a discussion about solving the information gap that exists and suggested 
having a person in each judicial district authorized by the Commission to 
address the information gap. 
  

Executive Session Commissioner Carey moved to go into executive session pursuant to 1 MRS 
section 405(6)(e) to discuss the Commission’s legal rights and duties with 
counsel. Commissioner Alexander seconded. No votes taken. 
 

 

Adjournment of 
meeting  

The next meeting will be held on a date to be determined.  

 

15



 

MAINE COMMISSION ON INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES 
 

TO:  MCILS COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: JUSTIN ANDRUS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 
SUBJECT: OPERATIONS REPORTS 
 
DATE: November 24, 2021 
  

Attached you will find the October 2021, Operations Reports for your review and our discussion 
at the Commission meeting on November 29, 2021. A summary of the operations reports 
follows:   

 2,260 new cases were opened in the DefenderData system in October.  This was a 155 case 
decrease from September. Year to date, new cases are down 2.9% from 10,415 at this time 
last year to 10,108 this year.  

 The number of vouchers submitted electronically in October was 2,932, an increase of 397 
vouchers from September, totaling $1,636,505, an increase of $204,727 from September.  
Year to date, the number of submitted vouchers is up by approximately 14.9%, from 9,572 at 
this time last year to 11,000 this year, with the total amount for submitted vouchers up 
approximately 35%, from $4,338,647 at this time last year to $5,871,184 this year.   

 In October, we paid 2,675 electronic vouchers totaling $1,440,923, representing a decrease of 
327 vouchers and a decrease of $213,990 compared to September.  Year to date, the number 
of paid vouchers is up approximately 20.8%, from 8,744 at this time last year 10,564 this 
year, and the total amount paid is up approximately 39.2%, from $4,002,273 this time last 
year to $5,571,252 this year. 

 We paid no paper vouchers in October. 

 The average price per voucher in October was $538.66 down $12.61 per voucher from 
September.  Year to date, the average price per voucher is up approximately 15.2%, from 
$457.72 at this time last year to $527.38 this year. 

 Appeal and Drug Court cases had the highest average voucher in October.  There were 9 
vouchers exceeding $5,000 paid in October.  See attached addendum for details.   

 In October, we issued 74 authorizations to expend funds: 39 for private investigators, 24 for 
experts, and 11 for miscellaneous services such as interpreters and transcriptionists.  In 
October, we paid $78,018 for experts and investigators, etc. No requests for funds were 
denied. 

 In October, we opened no attorney investigations. 

16



 In October, we approved 3 requests for co-counsel.   

In our All Other Account, the total expenses for the month of October were $1,531,646.  During 
October, approximately $12,703 was devoted to the Commission’s operating expenses.  

In the Personal Services Accounts, we had $55,619 in expenses for the month of October.   

In the Revenue Account, the transfer from the Judicial Branch for October, reflecting 
September’s collections, totaled $106,420. 

During October, we had no financial activity related to training.    

17



MAINE COMMISSION ON INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES
FY22 FUND ACCOUNTING

AS OF 10/31/2021

5,153,983.00$         4,940,737.00$         4,940,737.00$         
48,000.00$              48,000.00$              48,000.00$              

128,745.00$            -$                          -$                          
(398,351.00)$           398,351.00$            -$                          

-$                          -$                          -$                          
-$                          -$                          -$                          

495,733.30$            -$                          -$                          495,733.30$          
4,803,632.00$        5,387,088.00$        4,988,737.00$        16,146,203.30$    

1 (1,188,459.32)$       4 (1,531,646.43)$       7 -$                          10
2 (1,479,685.13)$       5 -$                          8 -$                          11
3 (1,282,898.64)$       6 -$                          9 -$                          12

(70,052.50)$             6,010.00$                -$                          (64,042.50)$          
(13,260.00)$             4,420.00$                -$                          (8,840.00)$             

(676,875.82)$           78,018.80$              -$                          (598,857.02)$        
Encumbrance (Jamesa Drake training contract) (92,400.00)$             -$                          -$                          (92,400.00)$          

0.59$                        3,943,890.37$        4,988,737.00$        9,899,374.26$      
Q2 Month 4

Counsel Payments Q2 Allotment 5,387,088.00$         
Interpreters Q2 Encumbrances for Justice Works contract 6,010.00$                
Private Investigators Barbara Taylor Contract 4,420.00$                
Mental Health Expert CTB Encumbrance for non attorney expenses 78,018.80$              
Misc Prof Fees & Serv Q2 Jamesa Drake training contract -$                          
Transcripts Q2 Expenses to date (1,531,646.43)$       
Other Expert Remaining Q1 Allotment 3,943,890.37$        
Process Servers
Subpoena Witness Fees
Out of State Witness Travel
SUB-TOTAL ILS

Monthly Total (78,018.80)$             
Service Center Total Q1 223,124.18$            
DefenderData Total Q2 78,018.80$              
Parking Permit Annual Fee Total Q3 -$                          
Mileage/Tolls/Parking Total Q4 -$                          
Mailing/Postage/Freight Fiscal Year Total 301,142.98$            
West Publishing Corp
Risk Management Insurances
Office Supplies/Eqp.
Cellular Phones
OIT/TELCO NSF Charges -$                          
Office Equipment Rental Training Facilities & Meals -$                          
Barbara Taylor monthly fees Printing/Binding -$                          
Tuition for Justin's CLEs Overseers of the Bar CLE fee -$                          
Dues Collected Registration Fees -$                          
AAG Legal Srvcs Quarterly Paym Current Month Total -$                          
SUB-TOTAL OE

-$                                                         

Encumbrances (B Taylor)
Encumbrances (Justice Works)

Supplemental Budget Allotment
Budget Order Adjustment

-$                                                         

-$                                                         
-$                                                         

471,013.00$                                           
Total Expenses

 $                               -   

 $                               -   

 $                               -   

 $               (23,692.65)

-$                                                         

OPERATING EXPENSES

 $               (12,861.08)

 $                    (259.30)

FY22 General Operations Allotment
FY21 Encumbered Balance Forward   

Q2Mo.Q1

Total Budget Allotments

INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES

TOTAL REMAINING

FY22 TotalMo.Q3 Q4

-$                                                         Encumbrances (CTB for non attorney expenses)

-$                                                         

Mo.

(12,703.71)$               

(210.00)$                     

 $                    (187.11)

 $                               -   
 $                    (104.74)

 $         (1,518,942.72)

 $                    (843.50)

 $                    (226.80)

 $                 (4,420.00)
 $                               -   

 $                    (218.62)

 $               (15,150.00)
 $               (17,810.04)
 $                 (8,002.33)

 $                               -   

Conference Account Transactions

Non-Counsel Indigent Legal Services

 $         (1,440,923.92)

 $                    (243.40)

48,000.00$                                             

Account 010 95F Z112 01                                        
(All Other)

-$                                                         

-$                                                         

-$                                                         

Financial Order Unencumbered Balance Fwd -$                                                         

Mo.

423,013.00$                                           FY22 Professional Services Allotment

(1,531,646.43)$          

 $                 (6,010.00)

-$                                                         

TOTAL

471,013.00$                                           

FY21 Unobligated Carry Forward

 $                    (482.94)

-$                             

INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES

18



MAINE COMMISSION ON INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES
FY22 FUND ACCOUNTING

As of 10/31/2021

275,000.00$           275,000.00$           275,000.00$           1,100,000.00$        
5,294,080.00$        3,276,305.00$        7,324.00$               8,585,033.00$        

-$                         -$                         -$                         708,658.00$            
1 -$                         4 -$                         7 -$                         10
2 -$                         5 -$                         8 -$                         11

-$                         6 -$                         9 -$                         12
3 -$                         -$                         -$                         

5,569,080.00$        3,551,305.00$        282,324.00$           10,393,691.00$      
884,522.69$           -$                         -$                         

1 100,206.73$           4 106,420.57$           7 -$                         10
6,000.00$               -$                         -$                         
2,167.00$               195.00$                   8 -$                         
3,334.00$               -$                         -$                         
1,020.00$               -$                         -$                         

2 -$                         5 -$                         -$                         11
-$                         -$                         -$                         

3 149,539.64$           6 -$                         9 -$                         12
2,142.00$               -$                         -$                         

Collected for reimbursement of counsel fees 286.00$                   -$                         -$                         
-$                         -$                         -$                         
-$                         -$                         -$                         

1,149,218.06$        106,615.57$           -$                         1,255,833.63$        
1 -$                         4 -$                         7 -$                         10

-$                         -$                         -$                         ***
2 (457,655.45)$          5 -$                         8 -$                         11

-$                         -$                         -$        
3 -$                         6 -$                         9 -$                         12
* (4,471.29)$              ** -$                         *** -$                         

5,106,953.26$        3,551,305.00$        282,324.00$           9,222,906.26$        
1 -$                         4 -$                         7 -$                         10
2 -$                         5 -$                         8 -$                         11
3 -$                         6 -$                         9 -$                         12

687,091.32$           106,615.57$           -$                         793,706.89$            

Monthly Total 151,967.64$            
Total Q1 264,695.37$            

** NO COLLECTED REVENUE IN AUGUST Total Q2 106,615.57$            
Total Q3 -$                          
Total Q4 -$                          
Expenses to Date (462,126.74)$          

884,522.69$            
Fiscal Year Total 793,706.89$            

-$                      

REMAINING ALLOTMENT 282,324.00$        

Collections versus Allotment

Cash Carryover from Prior Year

State Cap for period 2 expenses

-$                      
-$                      

Overpayment Reimbursements

-$                      
REMAINING CASH Year to Date

Counsel Payments -$                      

Counsel Payments

Counsel Payments

Other Expenses

Other Expenses

-$                      

Returned Checks-stopped payments -$                      

Collected from McIntosh Law -$                      

TOTAL CASH PLUS REVENUE COLLECTED -$                      

-$                      Collected from ME Ctr Public Int Reporting
-$                      

Collected from McIntosh Law -$                      

Collected for reimbursement of counsel fees -$                      
Asset Forfeiture

Collected Revenue from JB -$                      

Collected Revenue from JB -$                      
Victim Services Restitution -$                      

-$                      

FY22 Total

Collected from McIntosh Law -$                      

-$                      

Cash Carryover from Prior Quarter

Financial Order Adjustment

-$                      

Budget Order Adjustment

Financial Order Adjustment -$                      

-$                      

-$                      

Mo.

-$                      

Financial Order Adjustment

Collected Revenue from JB

7,324.00$            
Funds for new positions, etc

Account 014 95F Z112 02                                      
(Revenue) Mo. Q2 Q3

Total Budget Allotments 282,324.00$        
Budget Order Adjustment

Original Total Budget Allotments 275,000.00$        

Q4Mo. Mo.Q1

19



MAINE COMMISSION ON INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES
FY22 FUND ACCOUNTING

AS OF 10/31/2021

285,846.00$            223,990.00$            254,914.00$            927,667.00$            
-$                           -$                           -$                           
-$                           -$                           -$                           

(52,078.00)$             52,078.00$              -$                           
233,768.00$            276,068.00$            254,914.00$            927,667.00$            

1 (74,728.63)$             4 (55,619.74)$             7 -$                           10
2 (103,991.70)$           5 -$                           8 -$                           11
3 (55,046.83)$             6 -$                           9 -$                           12

0.84$                        220,448.26$            254,914.00$            638,280.10$            

Q2
Per Diem
Salary
Vacation Pay
Holiday Pay
Sick Pay
Empl Hlth SVS/Worker Comp
Health Insurance
Dental Insurance
Employer Retiree Health
Employer Retirement 
Employer Group Life
Employer Medicare
Retiree Unfunded Liability
Longevity Pay
Perm Part Time Full Ben
Premium & Standard OT
Retro Lump Sum Pymt

(4,112.64)$         
-$                    

(7,352.22)$         
(160.00)$            

(581.61)$            

TOTAL REMAINING

Month 4

-$                    

Mo.Q2 Mo.Mo.Mo. Q3

162,917.00$     

Q4

-$                   
-$                   

Account 010 95F Z112 01                         
(Personal Services) Q1 FY20 Total

TOTAL (55,619.74)$      

(2,433.38)$         

-$                    

(344.40)$            

(3,702.61)$         
(262.80)$            

FY22 Allotment

Total Expenses

(29,684.04)$       

Budget Order Adjustments

Financial Order Adjustments

162,917.00$    
-$                   

Financial Order Adjustments

162,917.00$    
-$                   

Total Budget Allotments

-$                   
-$                   

(2,035.11)$         
(1,809.09)$         

-$                    
(2,976.84)$         

(165.00)$            

20



MAINE COMMISSION ON INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES
FY22 FUND ACCOUNTING

AS OF 10/31/2021

127,406.00$            209,674.00$            211,155.00$            708,658.00$            
-$                           -$                           -$                           
-$                           -$                           -$                           
-$                           -$                           -$                           

127,406.00$            209,674.00$            211,155.00$            708,658.00$            
1 -$                           4 -$                           7 -$                           10
2 -$                           5 -$                           8 -$                           11
3 -$                           6 -$                           9 -$                           12

127,406.00$            209,674.00$            211,155.00$            708,658.00$            

Q2
Per Diem
Salary
Vacation Pay
Holiday Pay
Sick Pay
Empl Hlth SVS/Worker Comp
Health Insurance
Dental Insurance
Employer Retiree Health
Employer Retirement 
Employer Group Life
Employer Medicare
Retiree Unfunded Liability
Longevity Pay
Perm Part Time Full Ben
Premium & Standard OT
Retro Lump Sum Pymt

-$                    
-$                    

-$                    
-$                    

-$                    

TOTAL REMAINING

Month 4

-$                    

Mo.Q2 Mo.Mo.Mo. Q3

160,423.00$     

Q4

-$                   
-$                   

Account 014 95F Z112 01                              
(OSR Personal Services Revenue) Q1 FY20 Total

TOTAL -$                    

-$                    

-$                    

-$                    

-$                    
-$                    

FY22 Allotment

Total Expenses

-$                    

Budget Order Adjustments

Financial Order Adjustments

160,423.00$    
-$                   

Financial Order Adjustments

160,423.00$    
-$                   

Total Budget Allotments

-$                   
-$                   

-$                    
-$                    

-$                    
-$                    

-$                    

21



20 17 34,506.54$        16 2,078.73$      58 55 88,912.64$            1,616.59$   
202 378 262,086.91$      371 672.49$         846 1,532 1,012,788.49$      661.09$      

2 11 23,886.00$        13 2,074.31$      5 36 65,830.00$            1,828.61$   
6 11 2,526.00$           9 204.00$         27 17 4,870.00$              286.47$      

548 700 528,833.06$      632 710.87$         2,454 2,286 1,772,462.43$      775.36$      
77 73 25,123.99$        50 304.21$         339 339 81,027.79$            239.02$      
56 63 39,940.09$        62 653.30$         207 194 106,395.12$         548.43$      

220 223 65,718.80$        202 291.54$         947 882 264,836.08$         300.27$      
31 30 7,831.96$           24 231.73$         103 89 22,258.52$            250.10$      

139 143 46,154.79$        133 320.17$         610 586 182,194.56$         310.91$      
777 904 355,610.01$      818 375.02$         3,704 3,134 1,171,973.31$      373.95$      

0 8 5,109.55$           7 742.51$         0 14 7,871.17$              562.23$      
0 2 798.00$              3 428.08$         1 4 1,830.30$              457.58$      

35 58 47,241.76$        50 731.25$         108 221 162,901.66$         737.11$      
7 3 2,846.80$           3 948.93$         28 22 28,671.87$            1,303.27$   
4 2 2,058.00$           2 1,029.00$      10 6 7,430.00$              1,238.33$   

94 122 67,962.48$        118 513.47$         482 465 196,801.22$         423.23$      
2 4 1,928.76$           4 482.19$         8 9 4,002.12$              444.68$      
0 3 504.00$              2 136.00$         0 8 1,632.00$              204.00$      
0 0 0 0 2 106.00$                 53.00$         
0 0 0 0 1 110.00$                 110.00$      

40 177 115,837.94$      156 640.02$         166 660 386,036.77$         584.90$      
0 0 0 5 2 310.56$                 155.28$      
2,260 2,932 1,636,505.44$   2,675 538.66$         10,108 10,564 5,571,252.61$      527.38$      

Paper Voucher Sub-Total
TOTAL 2,260 2,932 $1,636,505.44 2,675 538.66$         10,108 10,564 5,571,252.61$      527.38$      

36,562.54$            

40,504.40$            

2,058.00$              
60,588.96$            

1,928.76$              

58,890.40$            
5,561.56$              

272.00$                 

1,284.25$              

MAINE COMMISSION ON INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES

Average
Amount

Vouchers
Paid

Amount Paid

Activity Report by Case Type

Oct-21
New
Cases

Average 
Amount

Vouchers 
Paid

 Cases 
Opened

Vouchers
 Submitted

449,272.92$          
15,210.41$            

33,259.70$            
249,495.07$          

26,966.00$            

$1,440,923.92

DefenderData Sub-Total

99,842.76$            

10/31/2021

Fiscal Year 2022
 Approved

Amount 
 Submitted

Amount 
DefenderData Case Type

Post Conviction Review

1,836.00$              

Appeal
Child Protection Petition
Drug Court

1,440,923.92$      

2,846.80$              

42,582.29$            
306,763.55$          

5,197.55$              

Probation Violation

Juvenile
Lawyer of the Day - Custody
Lawyer of the Day - Juvenile

Emancipation
Felony
Involuntary Civil Commitment

Petition, Release or Discharge
Petition,Termination of Parental Rights

Represent Witness on 5th Amendment

Lawyer of the Day - Walk-in
Misdemeanor
Petition, Modified Release Treatment

Review of Child Protection Order
Revocation of Administrative Release

Resource Counsel Criminal
Resource Counsel Juvenile
Resource Counsel Protective Custody

Probate

22



15 10 4,278.00$                      9 368.67$        39 27 12,433.70$                   $460.51
1 4 2,538.71$                      3 662.24$        6 9 4,080.71$                     $453.41

43 53 34,537.90$                   60 651.62$        165 230 152,595.95$                 $663.46
0 11 7,133.55$                      11 729.05$        16 29 20,909.22$                   $721.01

44 83 35,742.64$                   62 400.04$        213 348 119,770.04$                 $344.17
1 1 86.00$                           1 86.00$          3 2 190.00$                        $95.00
0 0 0 0 2 1,532.00$                     $766.00

22 16 10,644.09$                   14 577.70$        64 86 52,097.68$                   $605.79
0 1 992.00$                         1 992.00$        1 2 2,009.00$                     $1,004.50

35 96 51,286.93$                   88 584.60$        169 297 166,371.57$                 $560.17
9 17 8,113.92$                      12 526.52$        51 57 24,268.16$                   $425.76
9 6 4,502.00$                      6 592.00$        14 21 10,654.96$                   $507.38
3 16 6,117.42$                      13 449.03$        28 94 53,065.83$                   $564.53
1 1 1,752.00$                      2 1,022.00$     3 2 2,044.00$                     $1,022.00
5 18 11,514.96$                   15 669.66$        21 40 22,397.92$                   $559.95
2 1 474.00$                         1 474.00$        2 1 474.00$                        $474.00

15 25 19,564.00$                   25 798.56$        50 124 96,123.36$                   $775.19
0 0 0 1 0
5 9 3,952.00$                      8 482.75$        25 37 19,519.80$                   $527.56
0 0 0 0 1 212.00$                        $212.00
6 14 11,536.61$                   14 555.18$        31 48 24,491.06$                   $510.23

10 11 7,211.04$                      13 461.62$        26 63 39,128.47$                   $621.09
1 2 1,514.00$                      2 757.00$        2 2 1,514.00$                     $757.00

54 76 40,222.70$                   78 642.91$        225 336 196,248.53$                 $584.07
6 16 5,373.00$                      11 298.64$        33 50 21,319.17$                   $426.38
1 4 11,202.27$                   6 2,093.05$     4 16 21,872.07$                   $1,367.00
1 0 0 2 0
2 1 436.00$                         2 359.70$        3 4 1,473.20$                     $368.30
4 15 3,198.00$                      15 217.10$        18 33 8,927.76$                     $270.54
9 21 9,346.76$                      20 474.64$        41 86 35,136.75$                   $408.57

69 105 75,945.43$                   102 655.68$        287 410 250,017.16$                 $609.80
8 5 1,900.00$                      4 425.00$        28 26 10,710.00$                   $411.92

20 13 3,880.32$                      6 410.73$        45 58 31,274.21$                   $539.21
18 26 21,904.98$                   23 900.70$        61 77 48,745.70$                   $633.06
1 1 270.00$                         1 270.00$        7 3 1,032.56$                     $344.19
5 24 14,812.08$                   18 567.39$        35 74 60,751.84$                   $820.97

25 59 40,183.68$                   58 628.71$        108 202 121,536.00$                 $601.66
0 3 1,372.00$                      2 686.00$        4 6 2,937.60$                     $489.60
5 23 23,341.67$                   19 768.21$        44 71 65,416.30$                   $921.36
0 0 0 1 3 884.00$                        $294.67

21 40 30,933.64$                   36 709.52$        66 122 83,103.89$                   $681.18
17 13 27,723.30$                   11 2,095.79$     39 40 69,488.25$                   $1,737.21

267 412 219,717.47$                 358 474.24$        1,292 1,104 586,622.94$                 $531.36
128 133 77,397.20$                   127 588.37$        568 477 241,907.44$                 $507.14
160 130 57,262.72$                   132 470.76$        707 545 312,607.67$                 $573.59
141 162 85,124.75$                   158 520.28$        740 615 319,121.40$                 $518.90
251 256 143,477.70$                 212 446.32$        1,008 953 391,831.90$                 $411.16
29 23 13,691.22$                   21 562.82$        133 113 48,752.58$                   $431.44
64 52 38,018.45$                   43 698.49$        237 203 89,269.28$                   $439.75

PISCD 12 8 7,089.00$                      8 886.13$        53 43 25,114.35$                   $584.05
67 64 29,738.68$                   48 517.50$        210 164 87,408.70$                   $532.98
17 26 15,122.70$                   26 524.11$        91 104 59,103.60$                   $568.30
38 51 17,604.48$                   34 382.11$        137 145 60,270.32$                   $415.66

305 466 248,141.27$                 433 505.21$        1,730 1,634 876,312.40$                 $536.30
54 72 33,214.37$                   70 509.50$        272 314 144,037.21$                 $458.72
60 60 25,276.17$                   66 411.41$        276 340 127,934.65$                 $376.28
73 67 29,793.80$                   56 406.88$        309 262 133,766.51$                 $510.56
34 41 20,696.12$                   46 585.89$        156 131 66,779.50$                   $509.77
30 33 18,972.72$                   33 592.14$        90 145 79,732.04$                   $549.88
21 14 5,572.00$                      14 413.43$        54 62 25,545.84$                   $412.03
2 8 2,358.30$                      5 265.60$        19 37 17,228.84$                   $465.64
0 0 0 1 0

14 14 12,698.72$                   13 856.98$        44 34 21,147.02$                   $621.97
2,260 2,932 1,636,505.44$              2,675 538.66$        10,108 10,564 $5,571,252.61 $527.38TOTAL

YORDC

WISDC
WISSC

SOMCD

FRACD

WESDC

OXFCD

WATDC
LINCD

SAGCD

WASCD

HANCD

AROCD

KNOCD

ANDCD
KENCD

WALCD

CUMCD

PENCD

ELLSC

DOVDC

FARSC
FARDC

HOUDC
FORDC

YORCD

MILDC
MADDC

HOUSC

LINDC

SOUDC

ROCSC

NEWDC

MACDC

LEWDC

Law Ct

ROCDC

SPRDC

SKODC
SKOSC

PORDC

RUMDC

PORSC
PREDC

SOUSC

MACSC

ELLDC

BELSC
BIDDC

BANSC
BATSC
BELDC

CALDC

DOVSC

CARDC

Approved
Amount

Vouchers
Paid

Submitted
Amount

AUBSC

CARSC

BRIDC

AUGDC

Vouchers
 SubmittedCourt

ALFSC

1,372.00$             

Fiscal Year 2022
New
Cases

Oct-21

BANDC

MAINE COMMISSION ON INDIGENT LEGAL SERVICES
Activity Report by Court

10/31/2021

 Cases 
Opened

Vouchers 
Paid

82,204.75$           
94,618.78$           

169,778.05$         
74,723.06$           
62,140.62$           

23,053.74$           

66,879.45$           

 Average
Amount 

6,318.18$             
3,552.00$             

8,087.75$             

8,019.55$             
24,802.64$           

3,318.00$             
1,986.71$             

 Average
Amount 

AUGSC

Amount Paid

474.00$                

5,837.42$             
2,044.00$             

10,044.96$           

51,445.08$           
992.00$                

86.00$                   

39,097.17$           

1,440,923.92$     

1,328.00$             

11,140.72$           

26,950.95$           
19,540.72$           

5,788.00$             

35,665.15$           
27,153.09$           
22,785.28$           

13,626.94$           
12,991.68$           

218,754.14$         

30,035.24$           
7,089.00$             

24,840.00$           

11,819.22$           

1,700.00$             
2,464.40$             

14,595.91$           

20,716.03$           
270.00$                

10,212.98$           

25,542.85$           

36,465.12$           

719.40$                
3,256.56$             
9,492.76$             

3,285.00$             
12,558.27$           

19,964.00$           

6,001.04$             
1,514.00$             

50,147.08$           

3,862.00$             

7,772.48$             

23



1700

1900

2100

2300

2500

2700

2900

3100

July August September October November December January February March April May June

NEW CASES

FY'16-20 Ave

FY'21

FY'22

24



1,800

2,300

2,800

3,300

3,800

4,300

4,800

5,300

July August September October November December January February March April May June

Submitted Vouchers

FY'16-20 Ave

FY'21

FY'22

25



$800,000.00

$1,000,000.00

$1,200,000.00

$1,400,000.00

$1,600,000.00

$1,800,000.00

$2,000,000.00

$2,200,000.00

$2,400,000.00

July August September October November December January February March April May June

Submitted Voucher Amount

FY'16-20 Ave

FY'21

FY'22

26



$440.00

$465.00

$490.00

$515.00

$540.00

$565.00

July August September October November December January February March April May June

Average Voucher Price Fiscal Year to Date

FY'16-20
Ave
FY'21

FY'22

27



$415.00

$440.00

$465.00

$490.00

$515.00

$540.00

$565.00

July August September October November December January February March April May June

Monthly Price Per Voucher

FY'16-20 Ave

FY'21

FY'22

28



$15,000

$215,000

$415,000

$615,000

$815,000

$1,015,000

$1,215,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

COLLECTION TOTALS FY'18 to FY'22

FY'18

FY'19

FY'20

FY'21

FY'22

29



Vouchers over $5,000

Comment  Voucher Total  Case Total 
Elevated Aggravated Assault $18,761.70 $18,761.70
Murder $15,591.69 $15,591.69
Aggravated Assault $10,660.03 $10,918.83
Child Protection $7,023.27 $8,337.27
JV Aggravated Assault $6,891.68 $6,891.68
Gross Sexual Assault $6,497.44 $6,497.44
Termination of Parental Rights Appeal $5,447.77 $5,447.77
Termination of Parental Rights $5,094.03 $7,791.07
Termination of Parental Rights $5,038.00 $5,038.00

30



CONTINUOUS REPRESENTATION 

TO: MCILS ELIGIBLE COUNSEL 

FROM: JUSTIN W. ANDRUS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: CONTINUOUS REPRESENTATION 

DATE: 11/5/2021 

CC: COMMISSION 

 
 
 

I. Basis  

MCILS approves and administers the assignment of individual attorneys to represent 
indigent clients, and, where appropriate, assigns counsel to represent clients directly.  In 
criminal cases, assignments made by the Court are made under Rule 44. Rule 44 
contemplates the assignment of counsel as individuals.  For civil cases, Rule 88 adopts the 
provisions of criminal Rule 44. The individual attorney assigned by the Court or by MCILS 
to represent an indigent client is responsible to MCILS for all services rendered to that 
client and for all billing claimed for those services during the period of the assignment.   

Except as qualified below, the attorney assigned to represent an indigent client shall 
personally provide direct representation to the client at all substantive appearances.  
Notwithstanding the exceptions set forth below, the attorney assigned to represent an 
indigent client shall personally ensure the adequacy of all phases of representation and the 
accuracy of billing submitted to MCILS for that representation. 

Continuous representation is a fundamental principle of an effective public defense 
delivery system:   

ABA Ten Principles of A Public Defense Delivery System – Principle 7: 

The same attorney continuously represents the client until completion of the 
case.  Often referred to as “vertical representation,” the same attorney 
should continuously represent the client from initial assignment through the 
trial and sentencing. The attorney assigned for the direct appeal should 
represent the client throughout the direct appeal. 

“Continuous representation from appointment through disposition,” ABA Principle 7, 
requires that the same attorney initially appointed to a case continuously represent the 

31



2 

defendant through disposition of the case. Commonly  referred to as “vertical 
representation,” the continuous representation by the same  attorney is contrasted with 
“horizontal representation” – a representational scheme  whereby one attorney represents 
the client during one court proceeding before handing  off the client’s case to another 
attorney to cover the next stage.  

As the American Bar Association explains, “horizontal representation” is uniformly 
implemented as a cost-saving measure in the face of excessive workloads and to the 
detriment of clients. In fact, the ABA rejects the use of horizontal representation in  any 
form, stating specifically that: “[c]ounsel initially provided should continue to  represent 
the defendant throughout the trial court proceedings and should preserve the  defendant’s 
right to appeal, if necessary.” 

In explaining why horizontal representation is so harmful to clients, the ABA states:   

Defendants are forced to rely on a series of lawyers and, instead of believing 
they have received fair treatment, may simply feel that they have been 
“processed by the system.” This form of representation may be inefficient 
as well because each new attorney must begin by familiarizing himself or 
herself with the case and the client must be re- interviewed. Moreover, when 
a single attorney is not responsible for the case, the risk of substandard 
representation is probably increased. Appellate courts confronted with 
claims of ineffective assistance of counsel have commented critically on 
stage[d] representation practices. 

The nexus between the requirement that trial counsel be appointed as early as possible  and 
the requirement that the attorney who is appointed initially to represent the client  remains 
with that client’s case through to completion is to ensure that the minimum  level of 
advocacy necessary to mount a meaningful defense commences as soon as  possible. In 
defender systems relying on horizontal representation schemes, the delay  in appointing the 
actual trial lawyer has negative consequences for the client, as  exculpatory evidence like 
video tapes are routinely destroyed within days, physical  evidence like bruises fade away 
quickly, and witnesses can become harder and harder  to track down.  (The Right to Counsel 
in Maine – Evaluation of Services Provided by the Maine Commission on Indigent Legal 
Services, pp. 53-54) 

 

II. Policy 
A. An attorney may delegate tasks related to the representation of an assigned client 

to another attorney only to the extent consistent with the assigned attorney’s duties 
to the client under the Constitutions of the United States and the State of Maine, the 
Maine Rules of Professional Responsibility, applicable MCILS practice standards, 
and to the extent consistent with this policy.  The assigned attorney is nevertheless 
responsible to MCILS and to the client individually for all services provided by any 
attorney during the period of the assignment, and for all billing claimed for those 
services.  

32



3 

B. Except as set out below, an assigned attorney may not delegate substantive 
appearances to another attorney.  Substantive appearances include, without 
limitation: bail hearings; motions hearings; dispositional conferences; adjudicatory 
hearings; jury selection; trial; sentencing; commitment hearings; appellate oral 
argument; hearings on preliminary protective orders; jeopardy hearings; judicial 
reviews; and hearings on petitions for termination of parental rights. The assigned 
attorney shall personally ensure that clients and all witnesses have notice of and are 
prepared for each proceeding. 
 

C. Delegation of those substantive appearances in which delegation may be 
appropriate shall occur only as follows: 
 

1. Questions related to the delegation of substantive appearances will be resolved from 
a client-centric perspective.  
 

2. Delegation of substantive appearances shall be an exception to the expectation that 
assigned counsel will personally provide continuous representation of assigned 
clients. 
 

3. Delegation of substantive appearances may be made only to counsel who have been 
designated eligible to receive assignments of the applicable case type. 
 

4. Delegation of substantive appearances shall be made only with informed client 
consent. 
 
a. “Informed consent” means a person’s agreement to a proposed course of conduct after 

the lawyer has communicated adequate information and explanation about the material 
risks of and reasonably available alternatives to the proposed course of conduct. 
Whether a client has given informed consent to representation shall be determined in 
light of the mental capacity of the client to give consent, the explanation of the 
advantages and risks involved provided by the lawyer seeking consent, the 
circumstances under which the explanation was provided and the consent obtained, the 
experience of the client in legal matters generally, and any other circumstances bearing 
on whether the client has made a reasoned and deliberate choice.  

 
5. In the context of delegation of an appearance for an assigned client, informed client 

consent shall include informed consent from the client to reveal those confidences 
and secrets as are necessary to the delegated representation.  
 
a. “Confidence” refers to information protected by the attorney-client privilege under 

applicable law, and “secret” refers to other information relating to the representation if 
there is a reasonable prospect that revealing the information will adversely affect a 
material interest of the client or if the client has instructed the lawyer not to reveal such 
information. 

 
6. Assigned counsel shall document the client’s informed consent prior to delegating 

an appearance.  Where possible that informed consent shall be in a writing signed 

33



4 

by the client.  Counsel shall maintain documentation of consent and shall provide 
it to MCILS on request.  
 

D. Assigned counsel shall not delegate hearings on dispositive motions, jury selection, 
trials, sentencing hearings, summary preliminary hearings, jeopardy hearings, 
contested judicial reviews, hearings on petitions for termination of parental rights, 
or appellate oral arguments.   

If an attorney cannot appear to represent a client at an appearance for which 
delegation is prohibited, counsel may, with informed client consent, seek the 
assignment of co-counsel in the matter.  Where appropriate and permitted by rule, 
the appearance of co-counsel may be limited.   

 
 

 

 

 

34



1

Andrus, Justin

From: Andrus, Justin
Sent: Monday, November 8, 2021 1:56 PM
To: MCILS
Subject: Amended Delegated Representation Policy
Attachments: Informed Client Consent to Stand in.pdf; Amended Payment and DD policy.11052021.pdf; Delegation 

Policy.11052021.pdf

Good afternoon, counsel.

I have received feedback from some of you explaining that the MCILS policy I promulgated to ensure that clients receive
the benefit of vertical representation was unworkable as drafted. I have done my best to amend that policy to
something that is both workable and consistent with the rights of indigent clients. To that end, I have attached an
amended policy regarding payment and Defender Data, eliminating the section on vertical representation, and a new
policy regarding delegation, and how and when a case may be delegated. I have also attached a sample informed client
consent document that you may use if you choose. You may also create your own documents.

It is the policy of MCILS that assignments are to a particular lawyer, and that the assigned lawyer must serve the client in
all but unusual circumstances. We recognize that there are instances where delegation may be required, however. In
this policy we have differentiated between those matters that may be delegated, and those that may not. We have
confirmed that instances of delegation must begin with documented informed client consent. You must maintain
documentation of that consent in your file.

JWA

___
Justin W. Andrus
Executive Director
Maine Commission on Indigent Legal Services
(207) 287-3254
Justin.andrus@maine.gov 

35



MCILS Informed Client Consent – 11/5/2021p

Informed Client Consent for Stand-in Counsel 
 
Client Last 
Client First: 
Caption: 
Docket Number: 
 
 
 On date______________, I advised  _______________________________________that 
it would be necessary for me to delegate representation in this matter.   I have advised my client 
that: 
 

1. I am unable to participate in the (appearance type______________________________now 
scheduled for (date) _________.  I have asked my client whether it is their preference that 
I try to continue the matter.   My client’s preference is that I do___ /do not___do so. 
 

2. If it was my client’s preference that I attempt to continue the case I did so on ___________. 
 

3. As of the date of this document, the matter has not been continued. 
 

4. I have advised my client that ___________________________________ will appear with 
them.  Client has consented to be so represented. 
 

5. I have advised my client that ___________________________________ will have access 
to information protected by the client-attorney relationship.  Client has consented to that 
release of information for the purpose of this appearance. 
 

6. On _____________, I conferred with covering counsel and fully prepared them to represent 
client at this proceeding. 
 

7. Based on the foregoing my client consented ____ / did not consent ____ to being 
represented by coverage counsel at this proceeding. 
 

Date:        Signed:_______________________ 
        Maine Bar ID:_________________ 
 
 
 I, the undersigned __________________________________________, after asking any 
questions I may have had, consent to stand-in representation at the proceeding specified above. 
 
Date:        Signed:_______________________ 
  

36



AMENDED MCILS POLICY AS TO ASSIGNMENTS,  
BILLING SYSTEMS, AND PAYMENT 

TO: MCILS ELIGIBLE COUNSEL 

FROM: JUSTIN W. ANDRUS 

SUBJECT: MCILS POLICY AS TO ASSIGNMENTS, BILLING SYSTEMS, AND 
PAYMENT 

DATE: AMENDED 11/5/2021 

CC: COMMISSION 

The Maine Commission on Indigent Legal Services (MCILS) adopts the following policy as to 
assignments, its billing system, and payments, effective October 1, 2021, except to the extent that 
a later date is specified for specific provisions.  

Summary: Through this policy, MCILS restates that indigent clients are assigned to specific 
assigned counsel, and that those counsel bear individual responsibility for those clients from both 
a professional responsibility perspective, and from a fiscal perspective from the point of first 
contact with the client through the final resolution of the matter, or until relived by the Court or the 
appearance of successor counsel.  MCILS restates its financial relationships to the attorneys who 
are assigned to represent indigent defendants and to any law office or firm for whom any attorney 
works.  MCILS clarifies the permissible use of its billing system. 

 
I. The financial relationship between MCILS and assigned counsel 

MCILS shall be responsible for ensuring that payment for services rendered to an assigned client 
are made to the assigned attorney, or to the person or entity designated by the assigned attorney, 
consistent with its then current rules.  It shall be the responsibility of the assigned attorney to 
account for and allocate payment made for services rendered to an assigned client during the period 
of the assignment to any other person or entity to whom the assigned attorney may have any 
responsibility.  Effective November 1, 2021, MCILS shall not be responsible to any attorney or 
firm, other than the designated person or entity, for the allocation of fees, except to the extent set 
out in this document. 

The person or entity designated to receive payment from MCILS may be either the individual 
attorney or that attorney’s single member entity; or, may be a firm or individual by whom the 
attorney is employed or in which the attorney is a member, partner, or shareholder.  If an attorney 
designates an individual or entity other than that attorney to receive payment, and subsequently 
designates another individual or entity to receive payment, MCILS will direct payment to the 
designated individual or entity immediately on receipt and acknowledgment of the change.  Issues 
of allocation of those payments, and any recourse related thereto, shall be strictly the responsibility 
of the attorneys and/or entities involved. 

37



2 

Beginning November 1, 2021, MCILS shall pay all fees claimed for any services provided to any 
assigned client to the most recent person or entity designated by the individual attorney assigned to 
represent that client.  MCILS will presume that each individual attorney has designated that 
attorney as the person to be paid, except that for those attorneys who have designated another 
person or entity to receive payment prior to the publication date of this memorandum, that 
designated vendor will continue to receive payments on behalf of the individual attorney until the 
individual attorney designates a new vendor to receive payment.  

MCILS will direct payment when a voucher is submitted based on the identity of the attorney 
assigned to represent the client in the matter in question at that time, and the designation made by 
that attorney.  It is the responsibility of assigned counsel to ensure that a voucher is submitted in 
each case prior to any substitution of counsel.  

Attorneys shall designate the person or entity to receive payment for services provided to any 
assigned client during the period of the assignment by completing the form appended to this 
memorandum and then filing the form with MCILS.  Any change in designation shall become 
effective on the date MCILS receives the form and acknowledges the change.  MCILS counsel are 
advised that mail and faxes reach MCILS late and sometimes infrequently.  Counsel are advised to 
use email to ensure timely application of any change.  MCILS will not be responsible for payments 
made to the last designated person or entity prior to receipt and acknowledgment of a change. 
Counsel are further advised that MCILS anticipates a change to require filings through email only.  
If a policy requiring email filings is adopted, this paragraph shall not be construed to permit 
alternative means of filing. 

 

Any attorney or firm that has relied on any previous policy, protocol, or practice of MCILS with 
respect to the allocation of fees shall take such steps as are necessary to realize the benefit of that 
reliance before 11:59:59 p.m. on October  31, 2021.  These steps may include submitting an interim 
voucher.  No attorney or firm shall rely on any previous policy, protocol, or practice of MCILS 
with respect to attorney payments on or after November 1, 2021.  

 

II. Access to Defender Data / Subsequent billing and case management systems 
 

Each attorney who is or becomes eligible to receive assignments from the Court, and to be approved 
to represent an assigned client through MCILS, will be provided with the use of an account through 
Defender Data, or through a subsequent MCILS billing and case management system.  The attorney 
will not develop a property interest in that account.   

Each attorney shall be personally and exclusively responsible for the account assigned to that 
attorney.  Each attorney shall personally maintain access to the that account. No attorney may 
permit any other person to use the account, nor may any attorney provide any other person with 
that attorney’s login credentials.  

Each person who is subject to the rules of MCILS shall access the MCILS billing and case 
management system only through an account in the name of that person.  This provision applies to 
both attorneys and staff.   

38



3 

A staff person may be assigned an account in the name of that staff person at the direction of an 
MCILS eligible attorney.  Each staff person shall be personally and exclusively responsible for the 
account assigned to that staff person.  Each staff person shall personally maintain access to the that 
account. No staff person may permit any other person to use the account, nor may any staff person 
provide any other person with that staff person’s login credentials.  

 

III. Responsibility for information related to assigned cases 

Beginning November 1, 2021, the attorney assigned to represent a client is responsible to MCILS 
for all information recorded in, or submitted through, the MCILS billing and case management 
system related to that assigned matter.  It is the responsibility of the assigned attorney to confirm 
the accuracy of the information submitted to MCILS for each case, irrespective of who performs a 
specific task for the client, enters time information, or submits a voucher.   

Beginning November 1, 2021, each attorney assigned to represent a client is responsible for 
ensuring the creation, maintenance, and production of information related to that matter, 
irrespective of who performs a specific task for the client, enters time information, or submits a 
voucher.  

Beginning November 1, 2021, both the attorney assigned to represent a client, and the individual 
or entity who receives payment for services rendered to an assigned client, shall be jointly and 
severally liable to MCILS for any overpayment in any assigned case. Issues of allocation, 
contribution, and subrogation shall lie strictly between the attorney assigned to represent the client 
and the individual or entity who received payment.   

 

IV. Transition 

Mooted November 1, 2021. 

During the period beginning on the publication date of this memorandum, and ending at 11:59:59 
p.m. on October 31, 2021, MCILS will protect the expectation of payment to an individual or entity 
who has been designated by an MCILS attorney to receive that payment where an attorney has 
designated a new individual or entity to receive payment on the following limited basis: 

1. The protection provided in this Section V, “Transition,” is limited as set forth herein. 
 

2. This protection extends to the expectation of payment for services rendered to an assigned 
client by an attorney designated as eligible to participate in that case type, or otherwise 
specially approved by MCILS to participate in the specific case, on or before the date on 
which the attorney to whom the client was assigned advises MCILS that the attorney is no 
longer employed, partnered, or otherwise associated with individual or entity holding the 
expectation.  
 

3. During the transition period, MCILS will not change the designation of the person or entity 
to whom payment should be directed with respect to time entered into the MCILS billing 
and case management system for billing events that occurred prior to the date on which the 
attorney to whom the client was assigned advises MCILS that the attorney is no longer 

39



4 

employed, partnered, or otherwise associated with individual or entity holding the 
expectation. 
 

4. MCILS may, however, create a mechanism, including, but not limited to, creating a second 
account in the MCILS billing and case management system to permit an attorney to 
designate an individual or entity to receive payment for billing events that occurred on or 
after the date on which the attorney to whom the client was assigned advises MCILS that 
the attorney is no longer employed, partnered, or otherwise associated with individual or 
entity holding the expectation.  
 

5. Any expectation any individual or entity may hold terminates at 11:59:59 p.m. on October 
31, 2021.  Any individual or entity who wishes to perfect payment of any expectancy 
related to an attorney who is no longer employed, partnered, or otherwise associated with 
the individual or entity holding the expectation shall perfect that payment by submitting an 
interim voucher prior to that deadline. 

 

 

40



����������	


��������	
��������
	���
��������
������
����������
��


��
������
���������
��������

���������	
���������������

����������	
���	�


���������������������	
������	�����	
����������������������������������������������������������������
����������

��������	�������������	����������	����������������	��	�����������������������������

������������������

�
����������	
����������������������
�������������������������������������������	�������

�������	������������
������
���

����
��������� �����������
�����	�������!��������������
��������"������#����������������$�������

%�������
��#���	����
�����
������������
��������������������������	������

&%��	���������������'!�
���(��������������&)���
���*)�������+�����������)�����������������)��������

"�	�������������(

,
�
������"�	�%���%�
-���������������������'���
�
������������������
������
���
������	
�
���������

������
��#��.���)����������	��
��"�����������
41



���������	�
�

���������	�
�

��������

��������	
��
��
����
�
�������	
��
�����
���
��	
�����	
��
���
��
���������
��������
�������
���

�������
��	��
��
���������
��
�	��
��������
��
����
�������
���
��
�������
�����

����
���	������
��
����
 ������
���
���	
��
�������
��
��
����!����
���������
"�
�������
���

��������
����#!����

$%��
�
���
�����!�������
��
��
����������
�
���
��
�
	��&
���
��
��
��
��#!��
��
�
!���
!���
���

�����	�	
��
!�����
!�������	�
'��
����	
������
�����
��	
!���	
��&
��
���������
��������	�(
����

��������
$)�
�������	
��	
����*	
#����
��	
�������	
��
��
	�������
��
����	�����
)�*	
����
��
��
!����

���
���(

�������
������	
 ������
�
��������
������
�
����
���	����	�

$���
��
�	
��
	�
���
����
��
��#!�
���!�
��	
�
���
���	�
��
�����(
����
��������

$+��	�
��
����(
,���
�����
����
��
�
�����
�����
��������*�
���!��!��
+����
�������
����!����
���
����

��������-�	
���!��!��
���
����
��
�����
�����
���
#����
.��
���������
!��
,���
����
��
���&����
��

��
�����
������
����
���!&���

$�
���
�����	�
��
������
#���
��
����
���
����
����
�
!��������
���
��
#���
#��
�����
��
����

���!��!��(
����
 �������
$'��
�
&���
�*�
�����
��
�����!�����
��
,���
�����
����!����
��
	�
�������
��!
��
�

���������
�����������
���
�
�����
�������������(

/������
��
��������������
�����
�����
��
�0������!���
�
�������
��
����������
������
	��
��
���
�������

!������
!���
����
�����1����
����
��	
������
��!����
��
��
$�������
��
��
����(
42



���������	�
�

���������	�
�

���������	�	
���	

���������	�
�

����������	��
��������
�����������������������	��������������
������������������������������������

	����������������������������������������� ��������������������������������
�!�������������

�����������	�������������"��"���
������!�#$�������

�����	�����������������������	�������������������	����%��������������������������&'(����������

"����������
�������������	����)�����������������*�+��!����	��,����!����-���!������	�.��#��
���

������������������	����+��!����	�+�����������

/��������
���"�0������!�������!��
���������1
�������2�������3���	������������������

�������������	���������	����%�������������������0�������	����4'56����		�������������!�

	�����"�����!��"���������	�����
����������
�����
����������������

3����������	������������	���"���������������������������#������	��$�����������������
���������	

"�����������������������
��
���	�!����#���
��������������$����!����������������������7�8������

���
���������������������!���������	�����	��������""������������������������	�	����!������	����

/��������������4'45������"�������������	�59����	������	�59��������������������������������

���	�����
���������"���������������������"�����	������

/�������������"���������������������������������������"�������"����������

�����5����"��!!�������������������������������	������
����������������������������"��������
��

����7�����7����������������
���"�"��������	��������

7�����������������������������"������������	����#����"������������""�����������������"�������

"���������#������!������������	������������������������!���������������"��������
��#�������

�������"���������	�����:�"�������������
�"��������������������

;������������������	���
������������������������-���<���=�����	��������������1
���	�����������

��������������������	�"����������-�����	�

�=���������)���	�-�����	����
�����������=��	�����	������	���������	�
��"������
����������	�����

�������
��4'54��	�����)�!���#���
����������
�����
������#���������	��������������)�	����
��

	����	��������������������������#�+������

�>����	��?.��������	����!�#�������	������������������
������������

43



������������	�
��

���������	�
�

�
��	���	��

��������������	
�����

��	�����	�����	����	���	�
����������	����������	������	��	��
��
���������������

��	���������
�����	�������	���������	
������� !��"�	
���������	��	���	�
���������

��	���!������

������������
��������	��������
��������

#������������	���

��	���������������"������������������������	�	��
�����
����!$���������	��	��#���


���� ��
����������	������	����������������	
��������������������	�����

��	�����	���	��������	�

�

��	����
�������$

%������!�#�����&�����	
�����������������$

��	���'��	��	���������(	��

��	����
�)�*��+�%����%�����,(��	�-�"��./�0���
!�������	��	
��
�������
���

���	�
���	��
�������

1����	���������
���#	���
���
����
�
��	$���)��	
�	!����������
���
!�'��	��	� 	���������	
����������

����
�����(��223�������
����4��
�	&������ �5	�"����
��6���������!�����7��	���%�����
��
��������������!

��������
���
���882!��������������	������"���

��	�����	��
���-���	��'��	��	&��
�	���!��
��"�������
����

�	
������9!����	�
��������
������
�����
�'��	��	����
�����	���

��	���

#:���
���
��	����
���������	�����������	����
�;�����������	
�!$����������

��������
�������	���"�������������������������������
������	
�
�����

#����&������ �	������!$������(���
��	���#�������"��
��
���	���
�����	
�	��
��������"����	��
������	!

��
�
���������
��
�����
��	���������
����������	��������	����
�����	�
����������$

44



���������	�
�

���������	�
�

��������	�
�������������������������������		�����������������������������	�
����������������	����������

���

�������������	�����������������������������������������	������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������������	�
���������������������������������������������������������

����
����������� �	�����
�������������������������������
�����
����������������������������������������
���


������������������������������������
����������
�������!���������������������������������������!������

�����������	����������

 ��������������
�����������
�������������������"����

�#�������������������������	��������������	�������"��������������������������������������	���������$���

$�����
����%�����������������������������������������������������������������������	����������"����������


����������&����������������	����'������������(%���������������������������������'��������
�����������

���"�����������%�������������		�������	������������������������������������������������"�����������!���

������������	��������		�������

$�����
�������)*+,�-�����.���
�������������������
�����$�����/��������0�����������
��-�����.�����$����

.������/�����/��������1��������'���������2�	���3�$����
�������/���4���%������������������-������5����

.�!����3�#���������5�����
�����������������������������������������������������������
����������

���
����������	�5��������6��������������������
�����������������������
��
��������������������5�������

������������������������������-�������������������������)*+7��.�����������������������������������������

��������������������

�%������������������
�����������������������������	�������������	��8*9��9+**9����9���9�����'�	�������

$�����
����%�����
�����4����������������%���������4����������������%��������������"�!���������

.����:�����������������������������������������������
��

� ������������
�������������������
�������	�	��
��������
��������	��������������
�����������������������

����������������������

���'�	������������
������
�'��������������������
������������������	����

�������������

���'�	���������$�����
����1���	������������������������������
�����
�����������

��������	����������������
������;�<������������������������%�	�����
��
���������	�������������������

 �����������������������'���������������������������������

45



���������

���������	�
�

����������	
��������������������������������
�
������
������
���������������������
�����
�����

��������
�����������
����
��������������������
��������
��� 

	������
����
��
���!����"���#����������$��������%����

�������������&��
�������������������
������������

�������
������
�������

�������������������
��������������������������
��������������
��������
������������
�����������'���


��������
�����&������
����������������������
��$��
�����(���������������
�
����������&�
��
��������
�

�
���������������
��
������
���

���
����������������
��
��) ���������

*
�������
��
������������
������&���	��+,+,��
���-�����.
�
��/���0������
��������
��������������
���

���
��
���������

����1��&������
��-�����"����
��������

���������&�����
������
���

���
��
���
��
�

��������������/������
�������������
������
��������

�����'��
�������������
������������
������
����
��

�
���
����
�������'���������
�����������������������������

�	
�
������
�������������
��������������� ������2��������������������
��������

���

3��������

������
�����������
�������������������
�������������������������
���
����
����������

���������3��
�������������������������
����������������
��������
�
����������
�������
�������
�����

���������������������

	��2����
���-�����"������
�������
����������
��������������������
��������
���
��45�,,,�����'������������

�

�����������������
������
���������
�����
�'�������������������������������

	������
��
������
��
���"������
����!�������������
�������
�����������������������
���
����������
���������
�

��
�����
��������������
������������
���
������������������������������������
�
��
�������������

���������
��������������'
��������
�����������������
������6������
��
46



���������	�
�

��������	
��
����������������������������
��

��������
����
����
������������
���
������
�
��������������

���
� 

���������	
�

��������	���
����	������	���������	���	������	��	��

���	����	�����	��	��	����	��	
�����	�������	�	���	�������	
������

 �����������	�����	���!	�����	"�����	�������	�	���
��	�#�$	��#������	���

���

 ����������������

47



CRIME AND JUSTICE

Courts routinely order people convicted of lesser
crimes to report to jail on a certain date. When they
show up in York County, they’re being told the
sentence has been delayed.

COVID-19 forces York County
Jail to turn would-be inmates
away

BY ANDREW HOWARD | NOVEMBER 7, 2021

UU

COVID-19 forces York County Jail to turn would-be inmates away https://www.themainemonitor.org/covid-19-forces-york-county-jail-to-tu...

1 of 9 11/9/2021, 12:16 PM

48



1

Andrus, Justin

From: Andrus, Justin
Sent: Wednesday, November 10, 2021 5:31 PM
To: MCILS
Cc: Guillory, Christopher; Fisher, Darcy; Brochu, Stephen; Washer, Arthur
Subject: FW: FW: York County Jail

Good afternoon, everyone. I am copying here the people I know who might best be able to address what I perceive to
be a serious and developing issue here. D.A. Maloney, I have included you because I believe you are the current
president of the prosecutor’s association. If there is another person to whom I should send this email as a
representative of the prosecution bar, please let me know. I’m happy to do that. Commissioners, you are blind copied
for notice. Please engage with me if you would like to do so, but communication among you needs to be public.

As some of you are aware, Maine faces a serious issue with jails closed and/or overcrowded, and people being delayed
in serving their sentences. This presents a serious violation of the rights of defendants. These are people who have
bargained with the State for a determinate period of subjugation to the state’s coercive power, but are facing extended
and indeterminate periods of conditions of release and the inability to plan for housing, employment, education,
services, or child care. I had been aware that some people had been turned away from the York County Jail and the
Aroostook County Jail, but learned Monday night that it had become a practice to permit people to appear at the York
County Jail without notice that they could not serve their sentences. This was a hypothetical problem until today.

This afternoon we received an email from a Commission attorney relating the story of his client. That client returned to
Maine to serve a sentence, and was turned away. As a result, the client lost his job. The email is attached in line below,
as is my email of yesterday to all Commission attorneys.

If any of you can provide input or ideas about how to address this issue quickly, I would love to hear from you. My best
idea is to convert these sentences to administrative release, but that will take time if its even possible.

Thank you for reading.

___
Justin W. Andrus
Executive Director
Maine Commission on Indigent Legal Services
(207) 287-3254
Justin.andrus@maine.gov 

From:
Sent: Wednesday, November 10, 2021 3:56 PM
To: Andrus, Justin <Justin.Andrus@maine.gov>
Cc: MCILS <MCILS@maine.gov>; Guillory, Christopher <Christopher.Guillory@maine.gov>; Fisher, Darcy
<Darcy.Fisher@maine.gov>; Brochu, Stephen <Stephen.Brochu@maine.gov>; Washer, Arthur
<Arthur.Washer@maine.gov>
Subject: Re: FW: York County Jail

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the State of Maine Mail System. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

49



2

Hi All, I have a client who lost a job due to having to appear and then being turned away. He had moved out of state and
returned specifically to serve his time. He had no advance notice of the situation (and neither did I) and had to wait
about two weeks to get a determination from the Court with a new date, and before the second date, I filed a motion to
postpone the reporting date again based on the first experience. It seems to me that for all sentenced individuals that
notice should be provided well in advance of the reporting date as to whether they will be accepted or not. For these
unusual times, a conversion to Admin. Release would seem to be a good way to clear some of the backlog and relieve
the Courts and jails of a significant burden.

On Tue, Nov 9, 2021 at 12:29 PM Andrus, Justin <Justin.Andrus@maine.gov> wrote:

Good afternoon, counsel.

As you may be aware, the Maine Monitor published an article on Sunday concerning the York County jail issue we’ve
discussed in the past. I learned for the first time from that article that the Court was not sending the stand by order to
Defendants, but rather Defendants were appearing at the jail prepared to serve their sentences, and being turned
away. In addition to imposing what I continue to see as an unconstitutional burden on people who have already been
sentenced, this practice endangers indigent defendants directly. Many indigent defendants struggle to maintain
housing and employment, and to provide or obtain child care. A person who has secured leave from employment, or
has terminated employment, and who has potentially given up housing to report to jail faces unfair challenges in simply
living to the next appearance date.

We need a solution to this issue that allows indigent defendants to predict and plan for their incarceration after they
have made their bargains with the state. I propose converting the sentences to administrative release so that these
defendants are not subject to coercive power for longer than they have bargained for. I don’t know of another solution
at this point. If there is any way I can be useful on this point, I am available and willing to work toward a solution. I
encourage you to engage with your clients to determine how they are impacted by this situation, and to take
affirmative steps to put the issue before the Court for resolution in appropriate cases.

JWA

___

Justin W. Andrus

Executive Director

Maine Commission on Indigent Legal Services

(207) 287-3254

Justin.andrus@maine.gov

50



3

51



1

Andrus, Justin

From: Andrus, Justin
Sent: Tuesday, November 9, 2021 12:26 PM
To: Stanfill, Valerie; Mullen, Robert E; French, Jed; Lawrence, Rick E.
Subject: York County Jail 

Good afternoon.

As you may be aware, the Maine Monitor published an article on Sunday concerning the York County jail issue we’ve
discussed in the past. I learned for the first time from that article that the Court was not sending the stand by order to
Defendants, but rather Defendants were appearing at the jail prepared to serve their sentences, and being turned
away. In addition to imposing what I continue to see as an unconstitutional burden on people who have already been
sentenced, this practice endangers indigent defendants directly. Many indigent defendants struggle to maintain housing
and employment, and to provide or obtain child care. A person who has secured leave from employment, or has
terminated employment, and who has potentially given up housing to report to jail faces unfair challenges in simply
living to the next appearance date.

We need a solution to this issue that allows indigent defendants to predict and plan for their incarceration after they
have made their bargains with the state. I propose converting the sentences to administrative release so that these
defendants are not subject to coercive power for longer than they have bargained for. I don’t know of another solution
at this point. If there is any way I can be useful on this point, I am available and willing work toward a solution.

JWA

___
Justin W. Andrus
Executive Director
Maine Commission on Indigent Legal Services
(207) 287-3254
Justin.andrus@maine.gov 

52



1

Andrus, Justin

From: Andrus, Justin
Sent: Monday, November 8, 2021 10:56 AM
To: MCILS
Cc: Guillory, Christopher; Fisher, Darcy; Washer, Arthur
Subject: Forum for attorneys and stakeholders in the indigent legal services constellation

Good morning.

The Maine Commission on Indigent Legal Services will host a forum for attorneys practicing in criminal, child protective,
mental health, and juvenile matters to share their experiences and needs in practice with other stakeholders. This
forum is open to defense counsel, parents’ counsel, other counsel representing indigent clients, together with
prosecutors and attorneys general. The forum will be held on Thursday, December 9, 2021 beginning at 9:00 a.m. The
forum will be available to those able to attend in person in Room 228 in the State House, and will be open to
participation by Zoom as well. We invite all of the attorneys working in any part of the system that impacts indigent
clients to participate, irrespective of their roles and inclusive of their many perspectives.

We also invite, the Court, through its chiefs and trial jurists; the administrative offices of the court, and the clerks;
legislators; law enforcement officers; corrections officials, and anyone else interested in this area of law to attend in
person, or remotely, to listen.

We also welcome written submissions. We will share written material we receive by noon December 7th publicly, and
with those interested in learning about the attorney experience.

We hope to see you there. We invite you to share this invitation with anyone you deem appropriate.

MCILS is dedicated to supporting a practice environment that in turn supports the needs of the many lawyers working to
achieve justice. We hope you will join us in the promoting that mission.

JWA

___
Justin W. Andrus
Executive Director
Maine Commission on Indigent Legal Services
(207) 287-3254
Justin.andrus@maine.gov 

53


